ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COWWERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 7, 2003
3:15 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Carl Gatto
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Richard Foster
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 58
"An Act relating to the reinstatenent of Native corporations;
and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 58 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 15

"An Act relating to establishing the Alaska No-Call List, a data
base of residential telephone custonmers who do not wish to
receive telephonic solicitations; providing that the data base
be compiled at no cost to the custoners; requiring paid
tel ephonic sellers and paid solicitors to purchase the data
base; requiring telephonic sellers to identify thenselves;
requiring telephonic solicitors who are otherw se exenpt from
registration as telephonic solicitors to file wth the
Department of Law and pay the data base access fee; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 15(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- February 7, 2003



BILL: HB 58
SHORT TI TLE: REI NSTATEMENT OF NATI VE CORPS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) FOSTER

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0047 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/21/03 0047 (H CRA, L&C

01/ 30/ 03 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

01/ 30/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Conmmttee

01/ 30/ 03 (H M NUTE( CRA)

01/31/03 0100 (H) CRA RPT 6DP

01/31/03 0100 (H DP: KOOKESH, Cl SSNA, SAMUJELS

01/31/03 0100 (H ANDERSQON, CHENAULT, MORGAN

01/31/03 0100 (H) FN1: ZERQ( CED)

01/31/03 0107 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  ANDERSON

02/ 07/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 15

SHORT TI TLE: TELEMARKETERS NO- CALL LI STS
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) FATE

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0035 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 0035 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 03 0035 (H L&C, STA, FIN

01/ 29/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 29/ 03 (H <Bi ||l Postponed> -- Tine
Change - -

02/ 07/ 03 0153 (H COSPONSOR('S) : CHENAULT

02/ 07/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

LARRY LaBOLLE, Staff

to Representative R chard Foster

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As staff for the bill's sponsor, presented
HB 58 and answered questions.

SALLY SADDLER, Legislative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Community & Econom c Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- February 7, 2003



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that the departnent has no
position on HB 58 but foresees no problens with it.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 15, described the Al aska
No- Cal | List |egislation and answered questi ons.

JI M POUND, Staff

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 15.

ED SNI FFEN, Assistant Attorney GCeneral

Fair Busi ness Practices Section

Civil Division (Anchorage)

Depart ment of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about HB 15: how t he
bill was adapted from the Colorado |aw, and enforcenent under
the Al aska Unfair Trade Practices and Consuner Protection Act.

MARI E DARLI N, Coor di nat or

Capital Gty Task Force

AARP

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the AARP position in support of
HB 15, noting related action by the Federal Trade Conmm ssi on.

ROSALEE WALKER

A der Persons Action G oup (OPAG

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of HB 15 and urged the
commttee to take action regardless of unscrupulous solicitors
who will circunvent any | aw

JAMES CARROLL

Juneau Retired Teachers Associ ati on;

AARP

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 15 and urged the
commttee nmenbers to pass the bill, despite their concern about
solicitors finding | oophol es.

JOHN FURUNESS

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- February 7, 2003



Juneau Chapter Nunber 2088

Nat i onal Association of Retired Federal Enpl oyees (NARFE);

AARP

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 15 and described his
experience wth annoying tel ephone solicitations.

JUDY WARW CK, Interior Regional Manager for External Affairs

Cl

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that GCl supports the concept of
HB 15 but urged the Departnent of Law to work closely wth
t el ephone exchanges when devel opi ng the program regul ati ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-6, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:15 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Lynn, Dahlstrom and Crawford were present at the call
to order. Representatives Gatto, Rokeberg, and GQuttenberg
arrived as the neeting was in progress. Representati ve Foster

was al so present.

HB 58- REI NSTATEMENT OF NATI VE CORPS

CHAI R ANDERSON noted the first order of business was HOUSE BI LL
NO. 58, "An Act relating to the reinstatenent of Native
corporations; and providing for an effective date."

Number 0100

LARRY LaBOLLE, Staff to Representative Richard Foster, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 58 on behalf of Representative
Foster, sponsor. He said the Legislature has considered simlar
| egi slation several tines in the past. The bill addresses the
situation that occurs when a village Native corporation fails to
renew its corporate papers during a grace period and is
involuntarily dissolved. The Native village corporations are
creations of ANCSA [Alaska Native Cains Settlenent Act], and
they own the assets and operate the businesses of the village
cor poration. They could re-incorporate, but they wouldn't own
those assets granted under ANCSA. M. LaBolle testified that
the process is cleaner if the legislature provides a one-tine
wi ndow for them to pay their penalty fees and be reinstated

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- February 7, 2003



under the state corporation laws. This way, he said, there's no
gquestion that the corporation is a continuation of the original

entity. The last provision of the bill allows the board of
directors to legally change the corporation's name if another
corporation has taken the previously used nane. At this tine,
the bill applies to three village corporations that have been
involuntarily dissolved. They are Savoonga, which requested
that Representative Foster sponsor the bill, Paimut [and

Pununrimut Rinit].
Nunber 0263

MR. LaBOLLE, answering questions from Representative Cuttenberg,
said this is the third tinme he has staffed a simlar bill. He
said this "fix" is the sinplest option because it falls wthin
the corporate | aws of the state.

Nunmber 0375

SALLY SADDLER, Legislative Liaison, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Departnent of Community & Economi c Devel opnent, testified that
the departnent has no position on the bill. She said staff has
examned the bill and anticipates no problenms wth it. Back
penalties and fees will generate a small anmount of revenue, but
they are not included in the departnment's zero fiscal note
because they wll not i npact the departnent's ongoing
oper ati ons.

CHAI R ANDERSON cl osed the public hearing because there were no
ot her witnesses.

Nunber 0462

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report HB 58 out of commttee
with individual recommendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
not e. There being no objection, HB 58 was reported from the
House Labor and Commerce Standi ng Commttee.

HB 15- TELEMARKETERS NO- CALL LI STS

Number 0505

CHAI R ANDERSON said the next order of business was HOUSE BILL
NO. 15, "An Act relating to establishing the Al aska No-Call
List, a data base of residential telephone custoners who do not
wish to receive telephonic solicitations; providing that the
data base be conpiled at no cost to the customers; requiring

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- February 7, 2003



paid telephonic sellers to purchase the data base; requiring
tel ephonic sellers to identify thenselves; requiring telephonic
solicitors who are otherwise exenpt from registration as
tel ephonic solicitors to file with the Departnent of Law and
purchase the data base; and providing for an effective date.”

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that the sponsor of HB 15 has provided a
revised version of the bill for the commttee's consi deration.

Nunmber 0516

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to adopt the proposed conmttee
substitute (CS) for HB 15, Version 23-LS0058\D, Craver, 2/4/03,
as the worki ng docunent.

Number 0537
REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG obj ected for purposes of discussion.
Number 0550

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 15, described the key points of his proposed CS. The
Al aska No-Call List creates a data base of residential telephone
custoners who do not wish to receive telephone solicitations.
Some of those solicitations are intended to defraud senior
citizens. There is no cost to register a tel ephone nunber on
the list. A telemarketer nust purchase the no-call list from a
desi gnated agent of the Departnent of Law. The departnment w |
wite the regulations and establish the fees for the data base.
He said this wll begin the process of elimnating unsolicited
phone calls.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE stated that nonprofit corporations can
[register with] the Departnent of Law, allowing them to nmake
tel ephone solicitations. The fiscal note from the Departnent of
Law i s about $140,000 for the start-up year and $120,000 in the
foll owi ng years. This program is nodeled after Colorado's No-
Call List |aw. At present tinme, the Colorado No-call list is
taking in nore revenue than needed to break even.

Number 0770
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how the Departnent of Law will handle

wai vers for nonprofit cor porations t hat advocat e for
controversial social issues and solicit contributions. Woul d

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- February 7, 2003



the departnent decide which advocacy group could call and which
could not?

REPRESENTATI VE FATE replied that the Departnent of Law wl|
devel op regul ations for the program He said if the departnent
determ nes that the nonprofit agency [is a charity], then there
is no cost for the no-call list. He added that solicitation for
information, as in a telephone poll, is treated differently than
a comercial enterprise selling goods over the phone.

Number 960

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Alaska State
Legislature, clarified that "nonprofits are not included in
this; this is strictly for paid solicitors.”

Nunmber 0985

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked how a person could conplain
about an overly aggressive nonprofit organi zati on seeki ng noney.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said that HB 15 includes conplaint
pr ocedures.

MR. POUND answered a question from Representative Crawford about
whether third parties hired by nonprofits would be required to

buy the no-call list. He said yes, such a solicitor would have
to buy the no-call [ist. He confirmed that a nonprofit
organi zation which uses its own nenbers to solicit funds would
not be required to buy the no-call Iist.

Nunber 1126

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked who owns the no-call list and are

there protections to prevent a business fromreselling the [|ist
to ot her conpani es.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE replied that the State of A aska owns the
list, and the list may not be resold.

Number 1173

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked whether e-nails soliciting business
recei ved over a phone line [or cable] are covered by this bill

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- February 7, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE FATE replied that the Alaska No-Call List applies
to telephone calls and fax [facsimle] transm ssions and but
doesn't cover e-nmils.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG clarified that this bill does not stop
spam [unsolicited comercial e-mails].

CHAIR ANDERSON explained that electronic mil is defined
separately fromtel ephone solicitations.

Number 1400

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked how the Alaska No-Call List wll
be nmaintained and through which departnent's budget. She al so
asked how the list will be protected from illegal copying and

di stri bution.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE expl ai ned the Department of Law fiscal note
outlines the cost of starting and nmaintaining the data base.
The departnent will decide how frequently the list is updated.

MR. POUND said the issue of unauthorized distribution of the no-
call list needs to be tightened up either in the bill or the
regul ations. The original version of the bill allowed the I|ist
to be freely distributed, which he said, underm ned the sales
revenue of the Ilist.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said the security of the data base is of the
ut nost i nportance. He answered a question from Representative
Rokeberg about which list will be sold. It will be list of do-
not-call phone nunbers, rather than a |list of okay-to-call phone
nunbers.

Nunmber 1650

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said a telemarketer will have to take
the Al aska No-Call List and create a new do-call phone list. He
asked if HB 15 contains a prohibition against a conpany creating
a secondary market by conpiling and selling a do-call-list. He
asked how frequently the no-call list will be updated.

MR. POUND replied that anyone getting a license to do tel ephone
solicitation nust prove that they have purchased the Al aska No-
Call List. The Departnent of Law will decide how frequently the
data base should be updated; it may be every nonth when the data
base is first conpiled.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- February 7, 2003



Nunber 1757

ED SNI FFEN, Assistant Attorney General, Fair Business Practices

Secti on, G vil Division (Anchorage), Depart ment of Law,
testified that the updates on the data base nust be done at
| east once a year, as noted on page 3, lines 23-27 of the bill

He answered a question from Representative Rokeberg about
whether there is a prohibition against creating and selling a
do-call |ist. M. Sniffen explained that nothing prevents the
bl ack market sale of do-call |Iists. But telemarketers still
have to register with the state's agent and prove that they've
purchased the no-call data base.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked about the current charge by phone
conpani es for custoners who request a black dot by their nanes
in a phone book [indicating a preference for no phone
solicitations under AS 45.50.475].

MR. SNIFFEN said the cost varies from area to area. In
Anchorage, the charge is a one-tine fee of $5; in Juneau it
costs $10-%$12; in other places, there is no charge.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said this bill does not affect the present
"bl ack dot" systens used by the tel ephone utilities.

Nunmber 1890

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expressed concern about the size of
Department of Law s fiscal note. He asked whether the public
should help pay for the cost of this service. He encouraged
Representative Fate to get a nore conservative fiscal note from
t he Departnent of Law.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE replied that the success of the Col orado no-
call list, upon which Alaska's bill is based, encouraged himto
anticipate a break-even budget within a few years.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM sai d she has worked for conpanies that
buy telephone solicitation lists, and she said they are
accustoned to paying for such a |ist. She asked Representative
Fate whether he anticipated any problens getting updated lists
of di sconnected or reassigned phone nunbers from | ocal telephone
exchange carriers. She asked whether directory assistance wll
gi ve out the phone nunber of a person using a black dot.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE replied that it's up to the consuner to
contact the State's agent about adding or changing a phone

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- February 7, 2003



nunber . He said he could not answer questions about how the
phone conpani es' bl ack dot systens worKk.

Nunber 2162

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD stated that when he sponsored a simlar
bill |ast session, he spoke to three conpanies that handle no-
call lists [in other states]. Those vendors told him that they
continuously wupdated their no-call lists. In his bill [ast
session, the Departnent of Law set the fee for the no-call [ist

at $750 in order to cover all adm nistrative costs.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked how the departnment would handl e
the out-of-state tel emarketer who circunvents the | aw

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD pointed out in HB 15 how solicitors nmnust
state their names and phone nunbers. Representative Crawford
said in Louisiana [where there's a simlar law, it was wdely
publicized that each nerchant nust state these facts, and that
consuners should beware of solicitors who don't provide this
i nformation.

Nunber 2228

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO  conment ed how easily unscrupul ous
telemarketers will be able to circunvent the provisions of HB
15. He said that current vendors supply political canpaigns

with thousands of nanmes for $40; he questioned whether that
vendor woul d purchase an Alaska No-Call List for $750. As a
result, he said he thinks the true adm nistrative costs of the
program wi | | bal | oon.

Number 2320

MR. SNIFFEN noted that HB 15 falls under the state's consuner
protection Act [AS 45.50.471-561], which would subject violators
to fines of up to $5,000 per violation. Violations of the
tel ephone solicitation act [AS 45.63] are class C felonies. The
Department of Law would try to |locate these savvy thieves,
prosecute them and get restitution.

TAPE 03-6, SIDE B
Number 2350

MR SNIFFEN said that there's no way to stop unethica

solicitors, but it's still inmportant to notify telemarketers
about the Al aska No-Call List and to educate consuners about how

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- February 7, 2003



to avoid scans. The departnent can only spend so many resources
chasing down people in other countries who are naking phone
calls to Al aska.

MR. SNI FFEN responded to a query from Representative Rokeberg,
agreeing that citizens have the right to bring a private cause
of action against a conpany that defrauds them

REPRESENTATI VE FATE answered a question from Representative
Dahl strom saying that a telemarketer in Al aska needs an Al aska
busi ness |icense to conduct business in state.

Number 2282

MARI E DARLIN, Coordinator, Capital Cty Task Force, AARP,
testified in favor of HB 15. She said the AARP nunbers 71, 000
menbers in Al aska, and the task force includes representatives
from other senior and retiree organizations that have the sane
concerns. She pointed out the [February 2, 2003] AARP letter
that supported HB 15 and was included in each nenber's bill

packet. The initial work on this bill was done |ast |egislative
sessi on. The Federal Trade Commission (FTC) is revising its
tel emarketing rules, but the changes wll depend on a
Congr essi onal appropri ation. These rules won't regul at e
interstate calls. She said nmany other states have do-not call
lists, and it behooves Alaska to take this step. She said the
FTC rule will not take precedence over state |law. She urged the

commttee nenbers to take action to get rid of these unwanted
phone calls and fraudul ent operations that target seniors and
retirees.

Nunber 2166

ROSALEE WALKER, O der Persons Action Goup (OPAG, explained
that her group is ancillary to [a grantee of] the Al aska
Comm ssion on Aging. She noted that she supported the AARP
| etter [referenced by Ms. Darlin] and worked with the AARP | ast

session on the no-call 1list. She comented that wunscrupul ous
people will always find |oopholes in the |aw She wurged the
commttee to act on HB 15, and to consider this bill a work-in-

progress that may need future anendnents.
Nunber 2091
JAMES CARROLL, Juneau Retired Teachers Association; AARP,

testified that given today's technology, citizens value their
privacy nore than ever. He said that AARP and Juneau's retired

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- February 7, 2003



teachers believe that consumers have the right to be free from
unsolicited calls. They should not be forced to pay for a
caller-1D feature for their phone. In recent AARP surveys, nost
of the people polled indicated that they support a solution to
t he problem of unwanted phone calls. M. Carroll testified that
no matter what legislation is passed in the Al aska Legislature
or the U S. Congress, sonebody wll find |oopholes in it. He
said it's a good step in the right direction. He urged the
commttee to vote favorably on HB 15.

Number 2024

JOHN FURUNESS, Juneau Chapter Nunber 2088, National Association
of Retired Federal Enployees (NARFE); AARP, testified that these
groups favor HB 15. He said he testified in favor of simlar
| egi slation |ast year. He receives many solicitation calls
around di nnertime. He cannot understand about half of the calls
because he is hard of hearing, and many other tinmes the line is
dead when he answers the phone. He asked the commttee to pass
the bill.

Number 1955

JUDY WARW CK, Interior Regional Manager for External Affairs,
GCl, stated that GCI wanted to go on record as not opposing the
intent of the proposed CS for HB 15, but she cautioned, the
devil is in the details. She urged the Departnment of Law to
work with the |ocal telephone exchange conpanies that would be
responsible for Kkeeping this data current. For exanple,
conpanies like GCI would supply reassigned and disconnected
phone nunbers at |east once a year to the Alaska No-Call List.
She said tel ephone providers want to achieve the intent of the
| egi sl ati on without being overly burdened.

Nunber 1910

REPRESENTATI VE FATE spoke to a question from Representative
Gatto about the status of the Departnment of Law s fiscal note.
He expressed concern that the fiscal note is too high and said
he woul d consider increasing the fee for the data base.

CHAIR ANDERSON noted that HB 15 still has two committees of
referral, the House State Affairs Standing Commttee and House
Finance Standing Commttee, and he believed the fiscal bill
could be revised in one of those conmttees.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- February 7, 2003



MR. SNIFFEN, in response to a question from Representative Lynn,
said that the departnent is given authority under HB 15 to draft
regul ations to determne how much these entities will have to
pay for the Al aska No-Call List. He said the departnent would
not discrimnate in any way anong nonprofits in developing a fee
schedul e.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN clarified that he was not tal king about the
fee schedule but about issues for which these nonprofits
solicitors woul d be advocati ng.

MR. SNIFFEN replied that current law contains definitions for

paid solicitors, charitable organizations, and tel ephonic
solicitations. Any entity, regardless of their cause, unless
they're exenpt wunder the bill, would be required to purchase
this list. |If the sponsor of HB 15 wants to exenpt a group with

a specific cause, he would need to wite that into the bil
because now there's no discrimnation anong causes.

Nunber 1720

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked M. Warwi ck  about  whet her
i ndi vidual phone custoners or |ocal exchange conpanies would
provide information to the data base.

M5. WARWCK explained that individuals would initiate having
their nunbers placed on the Alaska No-Call List, but at |east
annually, that |ist would be purged of reassigned nunbers or
di sconnect ed nunbers. She described the exanple of one phone
nunber with two subscribers. The previous user of a phone
nunber chose to be on the no-call list, but the subsequent user
of the sanme nunber did not chose that option. The phone
conpani es would have to provide that change in sone format to
the state's agent. She said she hopes that the Departnent of
Law, when it wites regulations, wll wrk wth the |ocal
exchanges so their role will be workabl e.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD noted that in his bill last session,
phone conpanies didn't have to provide any information to the
no-call list; it would all be handled by a third party.
REPRESENTATI VE FATE confirmed that is also true in HB 15.

Nunber 1600

MR SNIFFEN, in response to a question from Representative
Rokeberg about the departnment's fiscal note, explained that the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- February 7, 2003



bill was based on the Col orado nodel. He said the fiscal note
adapted Colorado's figures to Al aska, for exanple the nunber of

t el ephone subscri bers and t he nunber of regi stered
t el emarketers. He said departnent staff calculated possible
revenue fromthe sale of the list at about $20,000 to $30,000 a
year . Based on the experience of Colorado and al so |daho, he

said the departnent anticipated |arge costs for getting the data
base and web site set up and comrunicating with each other in
the first year. The rest of the fiscal note was for staff in
the departnent to oversee the attorney general's work and
enf or cenent .

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d he was appalled at the need for 400
hours of attorney time and asked if this fiscal note was really
intended to kill the bill. He asked about the origins of the
$500 price tag for the list and the idea of a sliding scale fee.

MR. SNI FFEN replied that he did not know.
Nunber 1484

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked M. Sniffen about his earlier
reference to the four telemarketing conpanies registered wth
the Departnment of Law. She asked if he was aware of Al aska
conpanies hiring telemarketers |ocated outside the state, for
exanple, in Arizona. She said the majority of the tel emarketing
activity is based outside Al aska.

MR. SNIFFEN explained that it doesn't matter whether the

conpanies are physically located in or out of the state. | f
they intend to do telemarketing in Al aska, they nust register
with the Departnent of Law. O the four registered

tel emarketers, two are located in Alaska and two are | ocated out
of state.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked if an Al askan business hires an
out-of -state telemarketing firm that doesn't properly register
wi th the Departnent of Law, which conpany is penalized.

MR SNIFFEN replied the | ocal contractor would be held
responsible if the out-of-state telemarketer was engaging in
illegal conduct, unless the local contractor didn't know about
it. Then the out-of-state conpany would be held |iable.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked who would prosecute an Arizona
conpany if it were to break the Al aska | aw.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- February 7, 2003



Nunber 1378

MR. SNl FFEN responded that there are only two lawers in the
entire state to enforce the consunmer protection act, anti-trust
statutes, and other |aws. When out-of-state conpanies violate
Al aska's registration and telemarketing |aws, departnent staff
has to decide what kinds of resources are available to track
t hem down. The departnent would contact the Arizona attorney
general's office and inform it that sonebody in Arizona is
violating Alaska laws; the departnent would seek Arizona's
assi stance in prosecuting that conmpany. The departnent can sue
the conpany in Alaska court, get judgnents and injunctions, and
ask local authorities in Arizona to enforce them He said the
departnment does nore work with Florida than Arizona, but it's
t he sanme process.

Number 1327

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what priority the Departnment of Law
assigns to reciprocal requests from other states' attorneys
general .

MR. SNIFFEN replied that the departnent takes those conplaints
seriously and tries to find the Al aska perpetrators.

Nunber 1259

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Representative Fate whether he'd
be anenable to an anmendnent to delete the sliding scale and to
raise the fee from $500 to $750. A higher fee would help
finance this program The long-range goal is to mke the
program self-sustaining like it is in Colorado. He said the
commttee should do everything it can to lower the fiscal note.
He doesn't favor any exenptions for nonprofit organizations
because many Al askan busi nesses are suffering economcally.

Nunber 1165

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he has no objection to these changes
because he wants the programto be sel f-sustaining.

Number 1150
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnent 1:

Page 2, line 19
Del ete "not nore than $500"

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- February 7, 2003



| nsert "$750"
There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.
Nunber 1090
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnent 2:

Page 2, lines 22
Delete "the Attorney General shall determine the fee
on a sliding scale;"

There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Representative Fate whether he
objected to deleting the words "below the stated maxi num based
on revenue history of the fees" for the designated agent on page
2, line 27.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded that he had no objection to
del eting this | anguage.

Number 1050
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnent 3:
Page 2, line 27
Delete "below the stated maxi mum based on revenue
hi story of the fees”
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ai ned that this amendnent will allow
the attorney general to make an adjustnent of the fees paid to
t he desi gnated agent, but not on a stipulated formula.

Nunmber 0976

CHAI R ANDERSON asked whether there was any objection. There
bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 3 was adopt ed.

Number 0955
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 4:
Page 6, line 10, after "on behalf of the charitable

or gani zati on"
Insert "or a nonprofit advocacy organi zation"

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- February 7, 2003



Nunmber 0882

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG o0bj ect ed. He said he doesn't think
there's a definition in state |aw for an advocacy organi zati on.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN explained that there are various advocacy
groups, such as conservation groups, Planned Parenthood, and
Al aska Right to Life. He disclosed that he is a board nenber of
Al aska Right to Life. He said he is concerned that sonebody
[ Department of Law] doesn't discrimnate against one group or
the other depending upon their position on a particular issue.
He explained that these advocacy groups are not charitable
organi zations, but they advocate positions on various issues.
He said he doesn't want to elimnate those groups from making
t el ephone solicitations.

CHAI R ANDERSON suggested that if these organizations have
501(c)(3) or 501(c)(6) status with the Internal Revenue Service,
they are covered under charitable organizations in the bill

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d he opposes expandi ng exenptions in
HB 15. He said his goal is a zero fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said a nonprofit advocacy group is not
i ncl uded anmong the exenptions on page 6, lines 9-13: <charitable
or gani zati on or public agency.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked Representative Lynn to clarify what adding
nonprofit advocacy organi zation to the bill would acconpli sh.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD suggested that nonprofit advocacy
organi zations would not have to register and pay for the data
base.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he concurred with what Representative

Lynn is trying to acconplish, but if the bill were broadened to
add nonprofit advocat es, ot hers, whether for profit or
nonprofit, would <claim to be advocacy groups, causing a

nightmare of litigation.

Nunmber 0607
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he liked the overall intent of the
bill; he just wanted to make sure that groups that advocate a

cause are not discrimnated against.

Number 0577

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- February 7, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG sai d he believed advocacy groups were
i ncluded in charitabl e organizations.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said there was a definition of a
nonprofit organization in statute. He expressed concern about
adopting a generic standard whereby any nonprofit is exenpt and
will be allowed to do tel ephone solicitations. He said if he
had a black dot in front of his nane, he did not want advocacy
calls to his house. This bill was about the public protecting
itself fromtelemarketers; he said he did not care what they're
sel li ng.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD suggested there are two different issues
in this discussion. The advocacy of ideas is exenpted already
on page 6, lines 14-15. Fundrai sing for advocacy groups is a
di fferent issue.

Nunmber 0385

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said in AS 45.68. 010 a charitable
organi zation nust register with the Departnent of Law He said
an advocacy group can register wth the Departnent of Law and
get a waiver.

Nunber 0282

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN withdrew his notion to adopt Conceptual
Amendnent 4 but said he would vote "no reconmmendation” on this
bill and would continue working with the sponsor to nmke sure
his concerns were satisfied.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG renoved hi s obj ection to
Representative Lynn's original notion to adopt the proposed CS.

Nunmber 0178

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to report CSHB 15 [Version 23-
LS0058\D, Craver, 2/4/03], as anended, out of conmttee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no further objection, CSHB 15(L&C) was reported from
t he House Labor and Comrerce Standing Committee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- February 7, 2003



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
4:50 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- February 7, 2003



